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Respondent .

Before: Forrest E. Stewart, Adm nistrative Law Judge.
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FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The above-captioned civil penalty proceedi ngs were brought
pursuant to section 109( FOOTNOTE 1) of the Federal Coal M ne Health and
Safety Act of 1969, 30 U . S.C. 0819 (1970), hereinafter referred
to as the Act.

These proceedi ngs were consolidated pursuant to a notion
submtted by Petitioner on Septenber 19, 1978. Hearings were held
on Cctober 18 and 19, 1978, in Dallas, Texas. The Petitioner
called three witnesses and introduced 55 exhibits. The Respondent
called three witnesses and introduced ei ght exhibits.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

Docket Nos. DENV 78-51-P, DENV 78-485-P, and DENV 78-503-P
concern conditions which were all egedly observed at Respondent's
Martin Lake Strip Mne. The Martin Lake Strip Mne is a surface
lignite mne located in Beckville, Texas. Production started at
this mine in the early part of 1977. At the time of the hearing,
200 to 300 nmen were enployed at the mne. Atotal of six prior
paid violations occurred there in the period from Septenber 15,
1976 through May 16, 1977.

Docket No. DENv 78-51-P

I nspector Larry Mal oney issued section 104(b) Notice of
Violation No. 2-LGVM on May 17, 1977. The inspector cited 30 CFR
77.1605(d) and described the condition allegedly in violation of
this standard as follows: "The Caterpillar V 300 forklift
(company #3405) was not provided with an operative audible
war ni ng device. The forklift was located in the shop yard."

The testinony of Inspector Ml oney clearly established the
exi stence of a violation of section 77.1605(d). This section
requires
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that nobil e equi prent be provided with audi bl e warni ng devi ces.
The inspector tested the horn on the forklift and found that it
was not working. The cause of this malfunction was a faulty
control button.

At the time the notice was issued, there was no operator on
the machine and it was not running. However, one of Respondent's
mechani cs told the inspector that the forklift was operational
At this mne, atag forbidding use is normally placed on a
machi ne in need of repair. No such tag had been placed on the
forklift and nothing prevented its use.

The inspector testified that it was inprobable that an
acci dent woul d occur because of the inoperative horn

No showi ng was nade of negligence on the part of the
Respondent. The inspector estimated the probability that the
Respondent knew of the mal function to be m nute.

The parties stipulated that the condition was abated with a
normal degree of good faith.

Docket No. DENvV 78-485-P

Four all eged violations of mandatory standards are included
wi t hi n Docket No. DENV 78-485-P. Al four were objects of notices
of violation issued at the Martin Lake Strip Mne. They are
di scussed below in the order of their issuance.

A. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (Septenber 15, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM on
Sept enber 15, 1976. He cited 30 CFR 77.1711 and descri bed the
condition allegedly in violation of this standard as foll ows:

An enpl oyee was snoking a cigarette in close proxinmty
(approximately 2 feet) with the Chevrol et service
truck's cargo bed (conpany #3516). The truck was

provi ded with warning signs prohibiting snoking or open
flanes in the i medi ate area of the enployee. The truck
was carrying a one thousand gallon diesel storage tank
(over 1/2 full), oil, grease, and varsol

I nspector Maloney testified that he had stopped the service
truck in order to inspect it. The inspector had tw ce before
i ssued notices of violation directed at this sane truck. Because
of this, the operator of the vehicle was very nervous. He cli nbed
down fromthe cab, |eaned against a pipe at the top of which was
a sign which read "No snoking or open flane," took out a
cigarette and lit it in the presence of the inspector. The truck
was transporting a large quantity of oil, varsol, grease and
di esel fuel
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30 CFR 75.1711 states that "No person shall snoke or use an open
fl ane where such practice may cause a fire or explosion."™ A clear
violation of this standard on the part of one of Respondent's
enpl oyees i s evident here.

This violation was not acconpani ed by negligence on the part
of the Respondent. The Texas Uilities Safety Manual contains a
provi si on which reads, "Enployees shall not snoke on company
property where this act constitutes a fire hazard." Respondent's
safety representative, David Thonpson, testified that the conpany
made a diligent effort to enforce this provision. The operator of
the truck was i medi ately given a strong oral reprinmand and,
later, was issued a witten reprimand which was placed in his
file. It should be noted once again that the enployee lit the
cigarette directly under a "No snoki ng" sign

It is probable that this type of activity, if left
unchecked, would cause a fire or an explosion. A disabling injury
or a fatality would be the likely result of such an accident. At
the tine this infraction occurred, three people, including the
truck operator, a representative of the Respondent, and Inspector
Mal oney, were threatened with injury.

The parties stipulated that the Respondent denonstrated a
normal degree of good faith in abating these conditions once the
noti ce of violation was issued.

B. Notice of Violation No. 5-LGM (Septenber 15, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued 104(b) Notice of Violation No.
5-LGM on Septenber 15, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1702(c). The
citation was issued because it was reported to the inspector that
t he conpany had not submtted a report on energency nedical or
anbul ance service arrangenents to the MSHA subdistrict or
district offices.

Section 77.1702(c) requires that each operator shall, on or
bef ore Septenber 30, 1971, report energency nedical or anbul ance
service arrangenents to the MSHA district office. The Martin Lake
Strip Mne had not yet produced coal by Septenmber of 1976. Even
so, the definitions of "operator"” and "coal mine" in sections
3(e) and (h) of the Act are broad enough to have enconpassed the
Respondent and its mne at that tinme. The Respondent was required
to conply with the provisions of section 77.1702(c).

The testinony of Inspector Ml oney established a technical
viol ation of section 77.1702(c). The Respondent failed to file
the report in question because it was unaware that such a report
was required.
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There is no indication that the Respondent was negligent inits
failure to file this report. Approximately 6 weeks before the
citation was issued, the inspector delivered a "new m ne packet"
whi ch contained fornms to be submtted by the Respondent. The
i nspector did not set a date by which these forns had to be
subm tted. This packet did not contain a formfor the report in
guestion and the inspector could not remenber if the need for the
report had been di scussed.

Prior to Septenber 15, 1976, the Martin Lake Strip M ne had
not been issued a mne |I.D. nunber. This nunber is the | ega
identification of the mne and nust acconpany an operator's
subm ssions to MSHA. Wthout this identification, there is a
possibility that the informati on woul d be m spl aced.

The inspector did not consider the failure to submt the
report to be a serious infraction. The conpany had provi ded for
energency nedi cal and anbul ance services, but failed only inits
duty to notify MSHA of these arrangenments. Enmergency phone
nunbers had been posted on the bulletin board and each supervi sor
carried a pocket card with these nunbers.

The parties stipulated that the operator denonstrated a
normal degree of good faith in abating the condition, once the
noti ce of violation issued.

C. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Septenber 16, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued section 104(b) Notice of Violation
No. 1-LGM on Septenber 16, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1713(c). The
citation was issued because the onshift exam nation of the mne
shop had not been recorded for the 12 aam to 8 a.m shift. The
i nspector asked to see the onshift exam nation book for the shop
area and was i nformed by Chad Abernathy, the operating engi neer
that this book was not yet being kept.

The operator was negligent in its failure to maintain an
onshi ft exam nation record book. The inspector testified that the
m ne superintendent and ot her personnel had worked at m nes where
the record books were required. The superintendent and certified
i ndividuals qualified to make the exam nati ons knew or shoul d
have known of the requirenent.

The inspector was of the opinion that this was not a serious
vi ol ati on. No showi ng was nade that the operator failed to carry
out the onshift exami nation. In the event that such an
exam nation was carried out, it is inprobable that the failure to
keep a record would result in accident and injury. The record
serves primarily as a check to make certain that such an
i nspection did occur.
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The parties stipulated that there was a nornmal degree of good
faith denonstrated in the abatenent of the condition, once the
notice of violation was issued.

D. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (February 2, 1977)

Notice of Violation No. 2-LGV was issued by Inspector
Mal oney on February 2, 1977. He cited 30 CFR 77.1110 and i ssued
the notice because he observed that the fire extinguisher in a
wi nch truck was "not naintained in a useabl e and operative
condition."™ The inspector did not find that the condition was of
such a nature as could significantly and substantially contribute
to the cause and effect of a mine safety hazard or that it was
caused by an unwarrantable failure on the part of the Respondent.
The condition was abated within the time specified by the
i nspect or.

The parties agreed to settle this case for $43, the anount
originally assessed by MSHA's Ofice of Assessnents. This
settl enent was approved by the adm nistrative | aw judge at the
hearing and this approval is affirnmed here.

Docket No. DENv 78-503-P

A single alleged violation is included under this docket
nunber. On COctober 12, 1977, Inspector Mal oney issued Notice of
Violation No. 1-LGM at the Martin Lake Strip M ne. The inspector
cited 30 CFR 77.1104 and described the condition found by him as
fol | ows:

Excessive oil spillage and oil soaked rags were all owed
to accumul ate creating a fire hazard on and around the
swi ng gear case and hydraulic control valves on the
Koehring 1266 backhoe. The gear case and control valves
are located in the front of the machi ne house next to
the operator's cab. The backhoe is used to |load coal in
001 pit.

The testinony of the inspector established that the
condition existed as all eged. The backhoe had | eakage probl ens.
At the time the condition was first observed by the inspector
t he machi ne had been out of service for approximtely 1 hour and
had been renpved 200 to 300 feet fromthe |ocation at which it
had been worki ng. The machi ne had not been tagged to prevent its
use because the repair to be made was considered m nor

Ol covered a 4-foot by 8-foot plate. Sone of the oil had
gat hered in puddl es of approxinmately one-quarter inch deep. In
other places, it was sneared. Two to four rags of a size
approximately 2 feet by 2 feet had been thrown in the oil.

No plans to clean up the oil spillage had been nade by the
Respondent. Before issuing the notice, the inspector spoke with
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representatives of mne managenent and ascertained that a cl eanup
program had not been initiated. The nachi ne operator al so denied
responsibility.

The inspector believed that this condition created a fire
hazard. The accumul ati ons were beside the operator's cab and in
the area of the hydraulic tanks.

G ven the absence of a cl eanup program and the hazard
presented by these accunul ations, their presence was in violation
of section 77.1104.

No showi ng was nade that the Respondent was negligent in its
failure to keep the backhoe free of accunul ati ons.

It was inprobable that a fire would start and cause
injuries. There were no ignition sources in the inmediate
vicinity. In the opinion of the inspector, the two nost |ikely
sources of fire were discarded cigarettes or welding activities.
The engi ne on the backhoe sits towards the rear of the machine
and was considered not to be an ignition source by the inspector
Not only was there an absence of ignition sources, but the
hydraulic oil was fire-resistant. The tenperature at which this
oil would ignite was considerably higher than that of untreated
hydraulic oil.

Finally, the inspector testified that the operator of the
backhoe was the individual nost endangered by the accunul ations.
Si nce the backhoe had been renoved fromservice, this threat no
| onger exi st ed.

The Respondent denonstrated a normal degree of good faith in
abating the condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

Docket No. DENvV 78-486-P

El even all eged viol ati ons of mandatory standards are
i ncluded wi thin Docket No. DENV 78-486-P. Each of the 11 occurred
at Respondent's Monticello Fuel Facilities Strip Mne. This
lignite mne is located in Wnfield, Texas. It has an annua
producti on of between 6 and 7 million tons and enpl oys
approxi mately 400 enpl oyees. In the period fromApril 18, 1975,
t hrough January 10, 1977, there were a total of 22 prior paid
violations at the Monticello Fuel Facilities Strip M ne.

Each of the violations alleged herein was the object of a
104(b) notice of violation. These notices are discussed below in
the order of their issuance.



~192
A. Notice of Violation No. 1-JF (March 4, 1976)

Notice of Violation No. 1-JF was issued on March 4, 1976, by
i nspector John Franco. He issued the notice on the basis of
i nformati on contained on a printout received fromthe MSHA Denver
Ofice. This printout indicated that the Respondent had submtted
only eight of the 10 valid respirable dust sanples required under
the provisions of 30 CFR 71.106(c). The Respondent had subm tted
10 sanples, but two of these were subsequently invalidated. den
Hood, Respondent's enpl oyee in charge of the submi ssion of this
data, testified that he filled out a formincorrectly so that the
sanpl e appeared to have been taken in the wong | ocation. He had
wtten "001-0" where he should have witten "001-1." The second
sanpl e contai ned oversized particles. Respondent's failure to
submt 10 valid sanples was in violation of section 71.106(c).

The inspector was of the opinion that the operator would not
necessarily know that one of the submtted dust sanples contai ned
oversi zed particles. No showi ng was made that the Respondent was
negligent with respect to the sanple invalidated because of
clerical error.

It is inprobable that the failure to submt valid sanples in
this instance would |l ead to the occurrence of accident, illness,
or injury. This is particularly true because no respirabl e dust
probl em exists at this m ne.

The operator denonstrated a normal degree of good faith in
conmplying with the requirements of section 77.106(c), once the
noti ce of violation issued.

B. Notice of Violation No. 1-JDC (May 6, 1976)

Notice of Violation No. 1-JDC, May 6, 1976, was issued in
error. It was alleged that the Respondent failed to submt a
respirabl e dust sanple for a particular mner as required by the
provi sions of 30 CFR 71.108. After the notice had issued, it was
determ ned that the Respondent no | onger enployed the mner in
qguestion. A card had been sent to MSHA with this information, but
it had been msfiled.

The proceeding with respect to this notice was dism ssed at
the hearing. This dismissal is ratified here.

C. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 12, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM on
May 12, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1110. He did so because he
observed that the automatic hal ogen gas fire-extinguishing unit
on the B.E. 1350 W dragline did not have a current exam nation
tag. Section 77.1110 requires that an exam nation of fire
ext i ngui shers be carried out
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every 6 nonths and that the date of this exam nation be recorded
on a tag attached to the extinguisher. The | ast date recorded on
the tag of the hal ogen unit was Cctober 1975. This failure to
exam ne the unit and note the examination within 6 nonths was in
violation of section 77.1110.

There is no indication on the record that the Respondent was
negligent in its failure to exam ne the hal ogen unit and record
this exam nation on the attached tag.

It is inprobable that this violation would result in the
occurrence of an accident or injury. The inspector believed that
t he hal ogen unit was operational and gauges indicated that its
cylinders were full. The unit protects a 12-foot by 24-foot room
where the 7200 volt cable enters the dragline. Mreover, it is
only one of a nunber of extinguishers on the machi ne. The ot her
extingui shers were in good condition and had current exam nation
t ags.

The operator abated the condition in good faith, once the
noti ce of violation was issued.

D. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 13, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM on
May 13, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.604. Section 77.604 requires that
trailing cables be adequately protected to prevent danage by
nmobi | e equi pnent. The inspector issued the notice when he
observed that a power cable had been damaged by a bull dozer to
such an extent that the current breakers had been tripped and the
cabl e was deenergi zed. The outer jacket of the cable was
noti ceabl y damaged.

The inspector felt that the best way to avoid this kind of
accident was to provide a spotter for the operator of the
bul | dozer.

No showi ng was nade that the operator was negligent inits
failure to adequately protect the cable. The person operating the
bul | dozer shoul d have seen the cable which was clearly visible at
the point where it was run over. The cable is black and the sand
on which it lies is light-colored. Yellow flags are also used to
mark the location of the cable. This use of flags was of limted
ef fecti veness because they were frequently knocked out.

No injury resulted fromthis accident. Wen the circuit
breaker systemis functioning properly, the cable is deenergized
after a small time lag. An individual sitting on the bull dozer
woul d not be injured. There was sone risk of injury to a person
if he were to touch the bulldozer while standing on the ground.
It was unlikely, however, that anyone woul d have been in contact
with the machine when it was in notion.
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This condition was abated with a normal degree of good faith,
once the notice of violation was issued.

E. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 24, 1976)

The inspector issued Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM on May
24, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1605(d). He did so after discovering
that the "troubl e shooter's" truck did not have an operative
audi bl e warni ng device. This condition was qui ckly abated. The
i nspector did not find that the condition was of such a nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety hazard or that it was caused by an
unwarrantabl e failure on the part of the Respondent. The
condition was abated within the tinme specified by the inspector

The operator and MSHA agreed at the hearing to settle this
case for $78, the anmount originally assessed by MSHA's Office of
Assessnments. The settlenment was approved by the administrative
| aw judge at the hearing and this approval is affirned here.

F. Notice of Violation No. 3-LGM (May 24, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 3-LGM on May 24, 1976,
citing 30 CFR 77.1110. He did so when he observed that the fire
ext i ngui sher on the "troubl e-shooter’'s" truck had not been
i nspected in the prior 6 nonths. The order was term nated wthin
3 hours of its issuance. The inspector did not find that the
condition was of such a nature as could significantly and
substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety
hazard or that it was caused by an unwarrantable failure on the
part of the Respondent.

At the hearing, the operator and MSHA agreed to settle this
case for $55, the anmount originally assessed by MSHA's Office of
Assessments. This settlenment was approved at that tine by the
adm nistrative | aw judge and this approval is affirnmed here.

G Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 25, 1976)

The inspector issued Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM on May
25, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.410. He issued the notice because he
di scovered that a four-wheel drive buggy had a nonoperationa
backup al arm The inspector based his decision that a backup
al arm was necessary on the type of equiprment involved and the
visibility fromthe operator's seat. In this instance, the
operator of the vehicle would be unable to see an individua
i medi ately behind the vehicle if that individual was crouching,
kneeling, or on the ground. Because the operator's vision was
i npai red, the absence of an automatic backup alarmwas in
violation of section 77.410.

There was no negligence on the part of the Respondent in its
failure to equip the buggy in question with an operabl e backup
alarm
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The truck was equi pped with an alarm but it was not functioning.
No showi ng was nade whi ch woul d establish when the warning device
stopped functioning. Although it is probable that the driver of
t he vehi cl e knew t he horn was not working, there is no evidence
that the Respondent or any of its agents, knew or shoul d have
known of the problem

It is inprobable that this violation would result in
accident or injury. Only a small area imedi ately behind the
machi ne coul d not be seen fromthe operator's seat.

The parties stipulated that the Respondent denonstrated a
normal degree of good faith in abating this condition, once the
noti ce of violation was issued.

H Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (August 16, 1976)

The inspector issued Notice No. 1-LGM on August 16, 1976,
citing 30 CFR 77.1004(b). This section requires that overhangi ng
hi ghwal | s and banks shall be taken down and ot her unsafe ground
conditions shall be corrected pronptly, or the area shall be
posted. The inspector discovered visible cracks at the top of the
highwal |, a few feet fromthe edge. In addition, a seam of sand
with water running through it undercut the top of the highwall.
Because of these conditions, the inspector believed that the
hi ghwal | was unstable. Imediately prior to the issuance of the
order, one of Respondent's operations forenmen brought two
enpl oyees into the area and began to post it. The inspector felt
that the unstable condition of the highwall had devel oped prior
to the beginning of the shift, and that it had not been posted in
atinely fashion. The failure to correct the condition or to post
the area of the unstable highwall in a tinmely fashion was in
vi ol ation of section 77.1004(b).

There is no evidence on the record which would i ndi cate that
t he Respondent negligently violated section 77.1004(b).

It is inprobable that an accident and injury woul d have
occurred because the area in question was not marked off. There
was no pedestrian traffic in the area. The coal trucks which
passed the highwall did so on the spoils side of the cut, at
| east 60 feet fromthe wall. Men are required periodically to
wal k in the area threatened in order to set punps. There are
saf ety procedures which nust be foll owed at these tines,

i ncluding the requirenent that one man watch the highwall at al
times for sloughage. These procedures make it inprobable that a
punp setter would be injured.

This condition was abated with a normal degree of good
faith.
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I. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (August 16, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice No. 2-LGM on August 16,
1976, imredi ately after he issued Notice No. 1-LGM He again
cited section 77.404(b) because he believed that a section of
Respondent' s hi ghwal | was unstable. The notice dealt with a
separate pit along the same highwal |l approximately one-half mle
down fromthe area at which the first notice was directed. The
i nspector believed the second area to be worse than the first.
The upper portion of the highwall had been undercut by ground
wat er. The inspector observed a section of wall break and fal
while he was in the area. A violation of section 77.404(b)
existed in this instance because the area was unposted even
t hough the highwall was in an unstable condition

No showi ng was nade that the Respondent was negligent in its
failure to post this area, as required by section 77.404(b).

It was inprobable that this violation would have resulted in
injury. As discussed above, coal -bearing trucks do not travel
within 60 feet of the highwall and safety procedures were in
effect to prevent an accident when punps are reset in the area.

I mredi ately prior to the inspector's arrival in this pit, a

| oadi ng shovel had been noved through the area. Because of this,
it was necessary for four of Respondent’'s enployees to carry
cabl e past the affected area on the highwall side of the pit. As
a safety precaution, one of these enployees did nothing but watch
the highwall for hazardous areas, in order to give warning if

sl oughage occurr ed.

This condition was abated with a normal degree of good
faith, once the notice of violation was issued.

J. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Septenber 29, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 1-LGM on Septenber 29,
1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1109(c)(1). The notice was issued because
a "cherry picker" which was being operated in the 001 pit was not
equi pped with a fire extinguisher. The inspector did not find
that the condition was of such a nature as could significantly
and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne
safety hazard or that it was caused by an unwarrantable failure
on the part of the Respondent. This violation was inmediately
abat ed.

At the hearing, the parties agreed to settle this case for
$78, the amount originally assessed by the MBHA O fice of
Assessnments. The administrative | aw judge approved the settl enment
at that time. This approval is affirnmed here.
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K. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (Septenber 30, 1976)

Notice of Violation No. 2-LGV was issued by Inspector
Mal oney on Septenber 30, 1976. The inspector cited 30 CFR 77.513
whi ch reads as follows: "Dry wooden platformnms, insulating nmats,
or other electrically nonconductive material shall be kept in
pl ace at all sw tchboards and power-control sw tches where shock
hazards exist." (Enphasis added.) The inspector issued the notice
because the Respondent had not placed electrically nonconductive
material on the floor at the power switch for the dust
suppressi on system The power switch was | ocated on the ground
floor of a crusher plant and a considerabl e anbunt of water was
present on the floor around it. The sw tchboard in question had
two groundi ng systens. There was a groundi ng systemfor the
conduit and case, and a separate systemfor the conductors
t hensel ves.

The inspector believed at the tine he issued the notice that
the power switch itself presented a shock hazard and that this
hazard was aggravated by the wet floor. He did not exam ne the
swi t chboard' s groundi ng systens. At the hearing, he admtted that
he no | onger believed the condition presented a hazard. Section
77.513 requires nonconductive platforms or mats only if a shock
hazard exists. A violation of this section is not evident here
because no shock hazard exi sted.

Docket No. DENvV 78-487-P

Seven al |l eged viol ati ons of mandatory standards are included
wi t hi n Docket No. DENV 78-487-P. Each of these alleged violations
was the object of a 104(b) notice of violation issued at
Respondent's Monticello Fuel Facilities Strip Mne. These notices
are discussed below in the order of their issuance.

A. Notice of Violation No. 1-CH (Decenber 28, 1976)

I nspector O arence Horn issued Notice No. 1-CH on Decenber
28, 1976, during the course of a spot electrical inspection. He
cited 30 CFR 77.902 which requires that three-phase, |owvoltage
resi stance-grounded systens to portabl e and nobil e equi prent
shall include a fail-safe ground check circuit or other no |ess
ef fective device to nonitor continuously the grounding circuit to
assure continuity. The inspector issued this notice after
observing two portable welders were without a fail-safe
nmoni toring device on their ground circuit. These wel ders were
| ocated at the field house between pits A and C. The power to
these wel ders was supplied froma portable transforner through a
440-vol t three-phase, resistance-grounded system The transfornmner
was equi pped with a ground circuit breaker, but it was not hooked
up to the wel ders.

The two wel ders were | ow vol tage, portable equi pment and
were subject to the provisions of section 77.902. The inspector
based
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his conclusion that this equi pment was portable on the manner in
which the welders were wired. The absence of a nonitoring device
on these two welders was in violation of section 77.902.

The operator was negligent in its failure to provide a
ground nonitor on this equi pnent. |nspector Maloney was told by
David Nesmith, fuel engineer at Respondent's mne, that the
monitoring circuit was not hooked up because it could not be
stopped fromtripping out. The operator knew of the absence of a
ground nonitor on this equi pnent, yet continued to operate it.

In order for an accident and injury to occur, two events
woul d have to occur simultaneously. A ground failure would have
to occur at the same tinme as a phase-to-ground fault. The
i nspector testified that such an occurrence was probable. At
| east two of Respondent's enpl oyees were subjected to the hazard
in question. If a phase-to-ground fault occurred, the frane of
the wel ders woul d be charged with 227 volts. An individual who
cane into contact with the frane could be severely injured

The operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

B. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January 5, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice No. 1-LGM on January 5,
1977, citing 30 CFR 77.1607(a). The inspector issued the notice
because a coal haul age truck was not properly trinmed so as to
prevent coal fromfalling off. The inspector did not find that
the condition was of such a nature as could significantly and
substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety
hazard or that it was caused by an unwarrantable failure on the
part of the Respondent. The condition was abated within the tine
speci fied by the inspector

At the hearing, the parties agreed to settle this case for
$115, the anount originally proposed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. The settlenent was approved at that tinme by the
adm ni strative | aw judge. This approval is affirned here.

C. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 5, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued 104(b) Notice of Violation No.
2-LGM on January 5, 1977. He cited 30 CFR 77.1605(k). This
section requires that bernms or guards shall be provided on the
out er banks of el evated roadways. The notice was issued because
t he i nspector observed that a 300-foot section of the coa
haul age roadway at the bottomof the No. 3 ramp in pit 001 was
wi t hout bernms or guards on its outer bank. The roadway turned
approxi mately 90 degrees to the left at this point and was
el evated approximately 15 feet. It was being used by three
100-ton haul age trucks. Despite its being in
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the pit, this area was a "roadway" w thin the meaning of section
77.1605(k). The absence of berns or guards in this area was in
vi ol ati on of section 77.1605(k).

The operator was negligent in its failure to place guards or
berns in this area. It had not done so because it did not
consider this area to be part of the roadway.

The inspector was of the opinion that the berns woul d not
prevent a haul age truck which was out of control fromrunning off
t he roadway. However, bernms m ght be of assistance in guiding a
truck, thereby keeping it on the roadway.

The operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

D. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January 6, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice No. 1-LGM on January 6,
1977, citing 30 CFR 77.409(b). This section requires that
handrails shall be provided around all wal kways and platforms on
shovel s. The notice was issued because the inspector observed one
handrail to be m ssing and another to be damaged on Respondent's
| oadi ng shovel in pit 002. These handrails had been struck and
damaged by parts of the shovel which performthe function of
runni ng the bucket in and out when the shovel is in operation

At the tinme the notice was issued, the shovel had been
wal ked out of the pit a distance of 200 to 300 feet. The machi ne
had been taken out of service in order to allowrepairs to be
made. One of the repairs to be nade was the replacenent of these
handrails. The inspector testified that he would not have issued
the citation if his supervisor had not been there with him

In view of the above, no violation of section 77.409(b)
exi sted here. The shovel had been provided with handrails as
requi red, but these rails were damaged. Thereafter, the machine
had been renoved from service so that repairs could be made,
i ncluding the replacenment of these handrails.

E. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 6, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued 104(b) Notice of Violation No.
2-LGM on January 6, 1977, citing 30 CFR 77.1607(d). This section
requi res that cabs of nobile equi prent shall be kept free of
extraneous materials. The inspector issued the notice because he
observed goggl es, rubber gl oves, air hoses, five welding rod
cans, rags, four aerosol cans, and a headlight |lying on the
floorboard inside the cab of a boomtruck. This truck was bei ng
used in pit 002 at the time the notice was issued.
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No showi ng was nade that the Respondent knew or shoul d have known
of the failure to keep the truck's cab free of extraneous
materials. The record does not contain evidence of the | ength of
time which the materials had been left in the cab and these
materials could be observed only when the cab door was open

The inspector testified that this material presented a
hazard because it mght strike the operator of the truck if it
ever overturned. It is inprobable that this condition would cause
accident or injury. The truck was not noving at the tine the
condition was observed by the inspector. Even if it was noving,
it is highly unlikely that it would overturn under the
Ci rcumst ances.

The operator denonstrated a normal degree of good faith in
abating the condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

F. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January 10, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued 104(b) Notice No. 1-LGM on January
10, 1977, citing 30 CFR 77.1605(a). This section requires that
cab wi ndows be of safety glass or equivalent, in good condition
The inspector issued this notice when he observed a shattered
upper right side window in the cab of a coal haul age truck. G ay
tape was used to hold the wi ndow together, further obscuring the
truck operator's vision. The operator of the truck agreed wth
the inspector that the cracked wi ndow and tape obscured his
vi si on.

The operator was negligent in its violation of this safety
standard. Even though the condition was readily observable, the
operator failed to replace the w ndow

It was inprobable that an accident and injury would occur
because of this condition. The driver of the truck did not fee
that the window interfered with the truck's operation. The
ri ght hand wi ndow was sel dom used i n naneuveri ng.

The Respondent denonstrated a normal degree of good faith in
abating the condition.

G Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 10, 1977)

Notice of Violation No. 2-LGV was issued by Inspector
Mal oney on January 10, 1977. He cited 30 CFR 77.1605(b) which
requires that front-end | oaders shall be equi pped w th parking
brakes. The inspector issued this notice when he observed a
front-end | oader which was not equi pped with an operative parking
brake. This condition was abated by the follow ng day with the
installation of a new parking brake. The inspector did not find
that the condition was of such a nature as could significantly
and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne
safety hazard or that it was caused by an unwarrantable failure
on the part of the Respondent.
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The parties agreed to settle this case at the hearing for $98,
t he anmount proposed by MSHA's O fice of Assessnents. The
adm ni strative | aw judge approved the settlenment at that tine.
This approval is affirnmed here.

Docket No. DENvV 78-491-P

Ni ne all eged viol ati ons of mandatory standards are included
wi t hi n Docket No. DENV 78-491-P. Each of these alleged violations
was the object of a 104(b) notice of violation issued at
Respondent's Big Brown Strip Mne. The Big Brown Strip Mne is
| ocated in Fairfield, Texas, produces from4 to 5 mllion tons
per year of lignite, and enpl oys approximately 300 nen. There
were 16 prior paid violations at this mne between August 18,
1975, and June 16, 1977.

The notices are di scussed belowin the order of their
i ssuance.

A. Notice of Violation No. 3-JF (March 29, 1976)

I nspect or John Franco issued Notice No. 3-JF on March 29,
1976, citing 30 CFR 77.505. This section requires that cables
shall enter metal franes, splice boxes, and electrica
conpartnments only through proper fittings. The inspector issued
the noti ce when he observed that the fittings around a cable were
not secured with proper fittings where the cable entered the
frane of a circuit breaker. The cable was conprised of two
segnents. The first segnment, the trailing cable, led fromthe
dragline to the circuit breaker. The second segnent, the power
cable, led fromthe circuit breaker to the main power source
Whoden fittings had been placed around the cable at both entry
points, but they were not bolted or clanped to the cable.

The Respondent was negligent in its failure to secure the
cable with proper fittings. The inspector was of the opinion that
the fittings had never been secured. Mreover, the condition was
readi | y observabl e. The Respondent shoul d have known of the
condi ti on.

It was inprobable that an accident would occur. No damage to
the cabl es was observed.

The condition was abated with a normal degree of good faith.
B. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (July 28, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued 104(b) Notice of Violation No.
1-LGM on July 28, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1605(a). The inspector
i ssued this notice because the front wi ndshield on a grader had
shattered badly. It had shattered to the extent that the w per
bl ades woul d be danmaged if used. At the time the notice was
i ssued, the wi ndow had been raised. The condition was clearly in
viol ation of section 77.1605(a), which requires that cab w ndows
be kept in good condition
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No showi ng was nade that the Respondent was negligent in its
failure to maintain the cab wi ndow i n good condition. The
i nspector testified that he was unsure whet her the Respondent
knew of the condition and he did not give an indication of the
l ength of tinme which the wi ndshield had been damaged.

It was inprobable that the shattered wi ndshield would | ead
to an accident or injury. Because the wi ndshield was up, its
condition did not reduce visibility. The weather conditions were
not such that the operator would need to | ower the wi ndshield.

The operator denonstrated a normal degree of good faith in
abating this condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

C. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (August 4, 1976)

This notice of violation was issued on August 4, 1976. The
i nspector cited 30 CFR 77.1110, which requires that an
exam nation of fire extinguishers be carried out once every 6
nonths, and that the date of this exam nation be recorded on a
permanent tag attached to the extingui sher. The inspector issued
the noti ce when he observed that the fire extingui sher on the
troubl e-shooter's truck did not have an attached tag. He did not
find that the condition was of such a nature as could
significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a m ne safety hazard, or that the violation was caused
by an unwarrantable failure on the part of Respondent. The
condition was abated within the time prescribed by the inspector

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$61, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. This settlenent was approved by the adm nistrative
| aw judge at the hearing. This approval is affirmed here.

D. Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (Decenber 20, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM on
Decenmber 20, 1976, citing 30 CFR 77.400(a). He issued the notice
after he observed that the V-belt and pull eys on a gasoline notor
and air conpressor nmounted on the bed of a service truck were
unguarded. The inspector did not find that the condition was of
such a nature as could significantly and substantially contribute
to the cause and effect of a mine safety hazard or that it was
caused by unwarrantable failure on the part of the Respondent.
The condition was abated within the time prescribed by the
i nspect or.

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$90, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. This settlenent was approved by the admi nistrative
| aw judge at the hearing. This approval should be affirnmed here.
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E. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Decenber 22, 1976)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 1-LGM on Decenber 22,
1976, citing 30 CFR 77.1104. The inspector issued the notice when
he observed that the ground in the area of the storage tanks was
saturated with diesel fuel. D esel fuel oozed fromthe ground
when the inspector kicked away a surface | ayer of pea gravel. The
i nspector did not observe an ignition source in the area and
war ni ng si gns agai nst snoki ng and open flanes were present. This
accumul ation of diesel fuel was in violation of section 77.1104.

It was inprobable that an accident would occur because of
t he absence of ignition sources. Fire extinguishers are set in
the area to stop fire which occurred outside the tanks. However,
if afire were to occur within the tanks, it could not be
st opped.

No negligence on the part of the Respondent was shown. The
i nspector testified that the condition was not readily
observabl e. People did not walk in the area on a regul ar basis.

The condition was abated with a normal degree of good faith,
once the notice was issued.

F. Notice of Violation No. 4-LGM (February 17, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice of Violation No. 4-LGM on
February 17, 1977, citing 30 CFR 77.1607(d). This section
requi res that cabs be kept free of extraneous material. The
i nspector issued the notice when he observed extraneous itenms in
the cab of a truck being used by wel ders. These extraneous
materials were as follows: welding rod containers, tank
regul ators, a cutting torch, a welding hood, a junbo air chuck, a
fire extingui sher and other m scellaneous materials. The
i nspector did not find that the condition was of such a nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety hazard or that the condition was caused
by an unwarrantable failure on the part of the Respondent. The
condition was abated within the time limt prescribed by the
i nspect or.

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$74, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnents using the approved fornula. This settlement was
approved at the hearing by the adm nistrative |aw judge. This
approval is affirned here.

G Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 9, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney issued Notice No. 1-LGM on March 9, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.1110. He issued the notice when he observed that
a permanent tag recording a current exam nation date had not been
attached to the fire extinguisher in a coal haul age truck. The
i nspector did not find
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that the condition was of such a nature as could significantly

and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne

safety hazard or that it was caused by an unwarrantable failure
on the part of the Respondent. The condition was abated within

the tine specified by the inspector

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$74, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. This settlenent was approved by the adm nistrative
| aw judge at the hearing. This approval is affirmed here.

H Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (March 9, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 2-LGM on March 9, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.1110. He issued this notice when he observed
that the extinguisher on a coal haul age truck did not have an
exam nation date tag affixed to it and its pin had been pull ed.
The inspector did not find that the condition was of such a
nature as could significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a mne safety hazard or that it was caused by
unwarrantabl e failure on the part of the Respondent. The
condition was abated within the time prescribed by the inspector

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$46, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. This settlenent was approved by the adm nistrative
| aw judge at the hearing. This approval is affirmed here.

I. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 10, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 1-LGM on March 10, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.204(b). He issued the notice when he observed a
bui |l dup of grease in two places along a catwal k which went up the
boom on the dragline. The grease covered steps and handrails in
the affected area.

At the hearing, the inspector testified that he had
incorrectly cited 30 CFR 77.204(b) in the notice when he had
intended to cite 30 CFR 77.205(b). Because of this, the parties
agreed to settle this case for $25, rather than the $58
originally assessed by MSHA's Ofice of Assessnents.

There is no indication on the record that this was a serious
viol ation or one involving negligence on the part of the
Respondent. The condition was abated within the time prescribed
by the inspector.

This settlenent was approved at the hearing by the
adm ni strative | aw judge. This approval is affirned here.
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Docket No. DENvV 78-492-P

Three viol ations of mandatory standards are included within
Docket No. DENV 78-492-P. Each of these alleged violations was
the object of a 104(b) notice of violation issued at Respondent's
Big Brown Strip Mne. These notices are discussed below in the
order of their issuance.

A. Notice of Violation No. 3-LGM (March 14, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 3-LGM on March 14, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.1102. The inspector issued this citation when he
noted that a service truck was equi pped with a sign warning
agai nst snoking, but not with one warning agai nst open flane. At
the tine the notice was issued, the truck had been hauling a
quantity of oil and diesel fuel on the m ne haul road. Section
77.1102 requires that signs warni ng agai nst snoki ng and open
flane be posted so that they can be readily seen in places where
fire or explosion hazards exist. In view of the cargo carried by
the truck, the failure to equip it with a sign warning agai nst
open flame was in violation of section 77.1102.

The inspector did not find that the condition was of such a
nature as could significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a mne safety hazard or that it was caused by
an unwarrantable failure on the part of the Respondent. The
condition was abated with a normal degree of good faith.

The parties agreed at the hearing to settle this case for
$46, the amount originally assessed by MSHA's O fice of
Assessnments. This settlenent was approved by the adm nistrative
| aw judge at the hearing. This approval is affirmed here.

B. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 16, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 1-LGM on March 16, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.1607(p). Wiile in the No. 2 pit, the inspector
stopped a front-end | oader which had been | oadi ng coal. The
operator of the vehicle left the cab and stepped to the ground
wi t hout | owering the bucket to the ground first. The bucket
remai ned suspended approximately 3-1/2 feet in the air. This
failure to | ower the bucket was in violation of section
77.1607(p) which requires that "buckets * * * shall be secured or
| owered to the ground when not in use."

No negligence existed on the part of the Respondent. It was
not a policy at the mne to allow buckets to remain suspended
when not in use. This violation was the fault of the machine
operator.

It was inprobable that the machine operator's failure to
| ower this bucket would cause accident or injury. There were four
peopl e
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inthe area at the time the violation occurred. Al four were
i medi ately aware of the condition and the danger presented by
it.

The condition was abated i medi ately.
C. Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (June 16, 1977)

I nspect or Mal oney i ssued Notice No. 1-LGM on June 16, 1977,
citing 30 CFR 77.1605(a). The inspector issued the notice because
the bottom w ndows in the cab doors of a bulldozer had been
renoved. These wi ndows had been renpved by the machi ne operator
to allow better ventilation of the cab. The absence of this gl ass
was technically a violation of section 77.1605.

It is inprobable that this violation would cause acci dent or
injury. The inspector testified that he saw very little danger to
be presented by this condition

The inspector had no know edge of the Iength of tinme the
wi ndow had been mi ssing.

The Respondent denonstrated good faith in abating the
condition, once the notice of violation was issued.

There is no evidence that any penalty which m ght be
assessed in the cases discussed above woul d af fect Respondent's
ability to continue in business.

Penal ties

In consideration of the findings of fact and concl usi ons of
law in this decision based on stipulations and evi dence of
record, the followi ng assessnents are appropriate under the
criteria of section 109(a) of the Act.

Docket No. DENV 78-51-P
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (May 17, 1977) $100

Docket No. DENvV 78-485-P

Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (Septenber 15, 1976) $24
Notice of Violation No. 5-LGM (Septenber 15, 1976) $28
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Septenber 16, 1976) $28

Docket No. DENv 78-503-P

Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Cctober 12, 1977) $82
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Docket No. DENvV 78-486-P

Notice of Violation No. 1-JF (March 4, 1976) $61
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 12, 1976) $55
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 13, 1976) $74
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 25, 1976) $78
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (August 16, 1976) $78
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (August 16, 1976) $78

Docket No. DENvV 78-487-P

Notice of Violation No. 1-CH (Decenber 28, 1976) $98
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 5, 1977) $120
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 6, 1977) $90
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January 10, 1977) $90

Docket No. DENvV 78-491-P

Noti ce of Violation No. 3-JF (March 29, 1976) $110
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (July 28, 1976) $78
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Decenber 22, 1976) $86

Docket No. DENV 78-492-P
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 16, 1977) $90
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (June 16, 1977) $64
Settl enents

The settlenments di scussed above were negoti ated and approved
in conformance with the statutory criteria for assessnment of
civil penalties. In each instance, the approval of settlenment by
the adm nistrative |aw judge at the hearing is affirmed here. The
settl enents and correspondi ng penalties are as foll ows:
Docket No. DENV 78-485-P
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (February 2, 1977) $43
Docket No. DENV 78-486-P
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (May 24, 1976) $78

Notice of Violation No. 3-LGM (May 24, 1976) $55



Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (Septenber 29, 1976) $78
Docket No. DENV 78-487-P
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January 5, 1977) $115

Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (January 10, 1977) $98
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Docket No. DENvV 78-491-P

Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (August 4, 1976) $61
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (Decenber 20, 1976) $90
Notice of Violation No. 4-LGM (February 17, 1977) $74
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 9, 1977) $74
Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM (March 9, 1977) $46
Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (March 10, 1977) $25

Docket No. DENV 78-492-P
Notice of Violation No. 3-LGM (March 14, 1977) $46
ORDER

The civil penalty proceeding with respect to Notice of
Violation No. 1-JDC (May 6, 1976), Notice of Violation No. 2-LGM
(Sept ember 30, 1976), and Notice of Violation No. 1-LGM (January
6, 1977), are hereby DI SM SSED

Wth respect to the remaining notices of violation included
wi thin the above-captioned civil penalty proceedings, it is
ORDERED t hat payment in the anmount of $2,395 be nmade within 30
days of the date of this decision

Forrest E. Stewart
Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTES START HERE
~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1. Section 109(a)(1l) of the Act reads as foll ows:

"The operator of a coal mine in which a violation
occurs of a mandatory health or safety standard * * * shall be
assessed a civil penalty by the Secretary under paragraph (3) of
this subsection which penalty shall not be nore than $10, 000 for
each such violation. Each occurrence of a violation of a
mandatory health or safety standard may constitute a separate
of fense. In determ ning the anmount of the penalty, the Secretary
shal | consider the operator's history of previous violations, the
appropri ateness of such penalty to the size of the business of
t he operator charged, whether the operator was negligent, the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, the
gravity of the violation, and the denonstrated good faith of the
operator charged in attenpting to achieve rapid conpliance after
notification of a violation."



